






















  Exhibit 2

Board of Massage Therapists 
Licensing and Establishment Registration Activity

FY 21 through December 31, 2022

New Licenses and New 
Registrations Issued

(Exclusive of Renewals) Total Active Licenses 
and Registrations as of

December 31, 2022FY 21 FY 22
Massage Therapist Licenses 88 123 1,139

Massage Therapy 
   Establishment Registrations 7   

     
4 18

Total 95 127 1,157

Source: Compiled from DCBPL licensing database.







  Exhibit 3

   Board of Massage Therapists
  Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

 FY 21 through March 31, 2023
(Unaudited)

 FY 21

      

FY 22
July 1, 2022 � 

March 31, 2023  

 
Revenues

Licensing Fees $  79,165 $400,630 $ 50,025
General Fund Received 33,654 230,859 25,000

 Other Sources -   - 842
 Total Revenues 112,819 631,489 75,867

 Direct Expenditures
 Personal Services 174,843 200,721 121,430
 Travel 839 4,610 1,222
 Services 21,874 56,208 11,265
 Commodities - - -
 Total Direct Expenditures 197,556 261,539 133,917
 

 Indirect Expenditures 88,077 104,706 78,530
 

 Total Expenditures 285,633 366,245 212,447
 

 Annual Surplus (De cit) (172,814) 265,244 (136,580)
 

 
Beginning Cumulative  
  Surplus (De cit) 80,596 (92, 218) 173,026

 

 
Ending Cumulative  
  Surplus (De cit) $(92,218) $173,026 $ 36,446

      
Source: DCBPL Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures 3rd Quarter � Fiscal Year 2023 published on DCBPL�s website.



 Exhibit 4

Board of Massage Therapists
License and Establishment Registration Fees

FY 21 through December 31, 2022

FY 21 - 
December 31, 2022

Nonrefundable Massage Therapy Application Fee $  200
Massage Therapy Initial License and Renewal Fee 290
Nonrefundable Fingerprint Processing Fee 60
Nonrefundable Massage Therapy Establishment
   Registration and Renewal Fee 300
Investigation of an Unregistered Massage Therapy
   Establishment Fee 2,000
Massage Therapy Establishment Change of 
   Location Fee 65

Source: 12 AAC 02.396.





























 
learning of them to minimize periods of short staffing. At an executive branch-wide level, the 
Division of Personnel and Labor Relations is soliciting bids for a state-wide salary survey, the results 
of which may greatly assist with recruitment efforts.  

 
Recommendation #3: DCCED�s commissioner should work with policymakers to improve the 
recruitment and retention of DCBPL licensing staff.  

 
The division also works diligently to keep the professional licensing team staffed. With 41 
Occupational Licensing Examiners (OLE), five Records and Licensing Supervisors (RLS), five 
Program Coordinators, six Executive Administrators and a Marine Pilot Coordinator, a certain level 
of turnover is to be expected. We are currently in the middle of large class study reviewing the 
majority of these positions. We are hopeful that the outcome of the study may result in the OLE and 
RLS positions becoming part of a job family with different levels (OLE 1, OLE 2, etc.). We feel this 
will better reflect the variety in the scopes of work and responsibilities handled by the staff as well as 
creating a clearer career ladder within the division. We believe that this will improve staff retention. If 
the class study does yield levels of OLE positions, this will allow our positions to be more aligned 
with the workload and responsibility of other jobs at the same range within the state workforce.  
 
When we have turnover, we work to ensure the vacant positions are submitted for posting within 
days of learning of them to minimize periods of short staffing. At an executive branch-wide level, the 
Division of Personnel and Labor Relations is soliciting bids for a state-wide salary survey, the results 
of which may greatly assist with recruitment efforts.  

 
Recommendation #4: DCBPL�s director, in consultation with the board, should consider 
increasing licensing fees. 

  
The division is aware of and monitoring the current funding situation for this program. As noted in 
the management letter, for this program the timing of the end of legislative session and license 
renewal conspired to prevent a fee increase from being instituted this year. After next year�s fee 
analysis is complete, we will consult with the board and implement a fee increase if the fiscal situation 
merits one. 

 
Again, thank you for the opportunity for the department to provide input on this matter. If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Julie Sande 
Commissioner 
 
cc: Micaela Fowler, Deputy Commissioner, DCCED 

Hannah Lager, Administrative Services Director, DCCED 
Sylvan Robb, CPBL Director, DCCED 

Sincerely, 

Julilillilillllllllllllllililllililiiilliliiiilliiiiiee Sande







 
LEGISLATIVE BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Division of Legislative Audit 
 

P.O. Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

(907) 465-3830 
FAX (907) 465-2347 
legaudit@akleg.gov 

 

   

       January 5, 2024 
 
 
 
Members of the Legislative Budget 
   and Audit Committee: 
 
I have reviewed management�s response to this audit. Nothing contained in the response causes 
me to revise or reconsider the report conclusions and recommendations. 
 
Internally, we identified an error in the report on page 3 regarding board meetings. The report 
incorrectly states �A review of seven board meetings found the meetings were appropriately 
public noticed, allotted time for public comments, and a quorum was consistently met.� It 
should read �A review of seven board meetings found the meetings were generally public 
noticed, allotted time for public comments, and a quorum was consistently met.� We identified 
that one of the seven board meetings auditors reviewed was not public noticed. This board 
meeting occurred at the beginning of the audit period. The other six board meetings reviewed 
by auditors were properly public noticed. 
 
In summary, except for the revision noted above, I reaffirm the report conclusions and 
recommendations. 
 
 
       Sincerely,  
 
 
 
       Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
       Legislative Auditor 
 
 


